WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES INC Form S-3ASR March 31, 2015 Table of Contents

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31, 2015

Registration No. 333-

# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

## FORM S-3

#### REGISTRATION STATEMENT

#### **UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933**

Watts Water Technologies, Inc. (Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

## Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

04-2916536

(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

815 Chestnut Street North Andover, Massachusetts 01845 (978) 688-1811

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant s principal executive offices)

Kenneth R. Lepage

General Counsel and Executive Vice President of Human Resources Watts Water Technologies, Inc.

815 Chestnut Street North Andover, Massachusetts 01845 (978) 688-1811

1	Name	address	including	zin code	and tele	phone number.	including	area code	of agent	for service)
И	ranic,	addicss.	, micruaning	zip couc	, and tere	phone number.	meruanig	arca couc.	, or agent	TOT SCIVICE)

	Copy to:
	James R. Burke
Bostoi	ey, Allen & Snyder LLP 28 State Street n, Massachusetts 02109 phone: (617) 378-4346
Tele	scopy: (617) 378-4347
Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: 1	From time to time after this registration statement becomes effective.
If the only securities being registered on this Form are being offered purs	suant to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the following box. o
If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest	a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, reinvestment plans, check the following box. x
If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursua Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective regist	ant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, please check the following box and list the tration statement for the same offering. o
If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) to statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the sar	under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration me offering. o
If this Form is a registration statement pursuant to General Instruction I.E. Commission pursuant to Rule 462(e) under the Securities Act, check the	D. or a post-effective amendment thereto that shall become effective upon filing with the following box. x

If this Form is a post-effective amendment to a registration statement filed pursuant to General Instruction I.D. filed to register additional securities or additional classes of securities pursuant to Rule 413(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box. o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act (Check one):

	Large accelerated filer x		Accelerated filer o	
(Do not	Non-accelerated filer o check if a smaller reporting company)	Sn	naller reporting company o	
	CALCULATIO	ON OF REGISTRATION FEE		
TO TO		Amount to be Registered/Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per Unit/Proposed		
	itle of each class of ties to be registered(1)	Maximum Aggregate Offering Price(1)	Amount of Registrati	on Fee(1)
Debt Securities			\$	0
Preferred Stock, \$0.10 p Depositary Shares (3)	par value per share (2)		\$ \$	0
Class A Common Stock	x, \$0.10 par value per share (4)		\$	0
Stock Purchase Contract Stock Purchase Units	ets		\$ \$	0
Warrants (5)			\$	0
Units (6) (1)	An indeterminate amount of the securities of each	h idantified alogs is hains masistaned	\$	0
securities offered or sol other securities or that a	eterminate prices, along with an indeterminate nur d hereunder. Separate consideration may or may rare represented by depositary shares. In accordance ayment of all registration fees and will pay the reg	not be received for securities that are with Rules 456(b) and 457(r) under	e issuable upon conversion, exercise of er the Securities Act of 1933, as amer	or exchange of
(2)	Preferred stock may be issued directly or upon co	onversion, exchange or exercise of c	lebt securities, warrants or units.	
(3) preferred stock and will	Each depositary share will be issued under a deposit be evidenced by a depositary receipt.	ositary agreement, will represent an	interest in a fractional share or multi	ple shares of
(4) consideration will be re	Shares of class A common stock may be issuable ceived for such shares of class A common stock.	upon conversion of shares of prefe	rred stock registered hereunder. No so	eparate
(5) Because the warrants w	Warrants will represent rights to purchase debt so ill provide a right to purchase only such securities			istered hereby.
(6)	Each unit will be issued under a unit agreement a	and will represent an interest in two	or more securities, which may be or i	may not be

separable from one another.

**Table of Contents** 

Debt Securities
Preferred Stock
Depositary Shares
Class A Common Stock
Stock Purchase Contracts
Stock Purchase Units
Warrants

Units

We may issue, separately or together, debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares, class A common stock, stock purchase contracts, stock purchase units, warrants and units, and we or any selling security holders may offer and sell, separately or together, these securities from time to time in one or more offerings.

This prospectus describes the general terms of these securities and the general manner in which these securities may be offered. We will provide the specific terms of any securities offered in a supplement to this prospectus at the time of the offering. The prospectus supplement for each offering of securities will also describe the specific manner in which the securities will be offered and may also supplement, update or amend information contained in this document. You should read this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement before you invest.

We and any selling security holders may offer these securities in amounts, at prices and on terms determined at the time of offering. The securities may be sold directly to you, through agents, or through underwriters and dealers. If agents, underwriters or dealers are used to sell the securities, we will name them and describe their compensation in a prospectus supplement. Our net proceeds, and the net proceeds received by any selling security holders, from the sale of these securities will also be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Our class A common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol WTS.

Investing in these securities involves certain risks. See Risk Factors on page 7 of this prospectus and as included in any accompanying prospectus supplement and in the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus and the accompanying prospectus supplement for a discussion of the factors you should carefully consider before deciding to purchase these securities.

Our principal executive offices are located at 8 location is (978) 688-1811.	315 Chestnut Street, North Andover, Massachusetts 01845, and our telephone number at that
e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	nission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or nis prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.
	The date of this prospectus is March 31, 2015.

## Table of Contents

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	2
	3
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	3
INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE	4
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	5
WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.	6
RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES	7
RISK FACTORS	7
<u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>	7
DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES	8
<u>DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK</u>	17
<u>DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES</u>	22
DESCRIPTION OF CLASS A COMMON STOCK	25
DESCRIPTION OF STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS AND STOCK PURCHASE UNITS	26
DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS	26
DESCRIPTION OF UNITS	28
FORMS OF SECURITIES	29
SELLING SECURITY HOLDERS	30
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	31
LEGAL MATTERS	33
<u>EXPERTS</u>	33

#### **Table of Contents**

#### ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which we refer to as the SEC, utilizing a shelf registration process. Under this shelf registration process, we or any selling security holders may from time to time sell any combination of the securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings. We may offer any of the following securities: debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares, class A common stock, stock purchase contracts and stock purchase units. We may also offer warrants to purchase debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares or class A common stock or units consisting of one or more of the other securities described in this prospectus in any combination.

This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities we or any selling security holders may offer. Each time we or any selling security holders sell securities, we will provide one or more prospectus supplements that will contain specific information about the terms of the offering. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read both this prospectus and the accompanying prospectus supplement together with the additional information described in this prospectus under the heading Where You Can Find More Information.

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus, any accompanying prospectus supplement or in any related free writing prospectus filed by us with the SEC. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. This prospectus and the accompanying prospectus supplement do not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities other than the securities described in the accompanying prospectus supplement or an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy such securities in any circumstances in which such offer or solicitation is unlawful. You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus, any prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated by reference is accurate only as of their respective dates. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed materially since those dates.

The terms Watts Water, we, our, and us refer, collectively, to Watts Water Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its consubsidiaries.

#### WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Our SEC filings are available to the public over the Internet at the SEC s website at http://www.sec.gov. Copies of certain information filed by us with the SEC are also available on our website at http://www.wattswater.com. Our website is not a part of this prospectus and is not incorporated by reference in this prospectus. You may also read and copy any document we file at the SEC s Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the Public Reference Room.

Because our class A common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange, you may also inspect reports, proxy statements and other information about us at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.

This prospectus is part of a registration statement we filed with the SEC. This prospectus omits some information contained in the registration statement in accordance with SEC rules and regulations. You should review the information and exhibits in the registration statement for further information on us and our consolidated subsidiaries and the securities we are offering. Statements in this prospectus concerning any document we filed as an exhibit to the registration statement or that we otherwise filed with the SEC are not intended to be comprehensive and are qualified by reference to these filings. You should review the complete document to evaluate these statements.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference much of the information we file with them, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those publicly available documents. The information that we incorporate by reference in this prospectus is considered to be part of this prospectus. Because we are incorporating by reference future filings with the SEC, this prospectus is continually updated and those future filings may modify or supersede some of the information included or incorporated in this prospectus. This means that you must look at all of the SEC filings that we incorporate by reference to determine if any of the statements in this prospectus or in any document previously incorporated by reference have been modified or superseded. This prospectus incorporates by reference the documents listed below (File No. 001-11499 unless otherwise noted) and any future filings we make with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (in each case, other than those documents or the portions of those documents not deemed to be filed) until the offering of the securities under the registration statement is terminated or completed:

- Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 filed on February 26, 2015, including the information specifically incorporated by reference into the Annual Report on Form 10-K from our definitive proxy statement for the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed on March 26, 2015;
- Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on February 17, 2015 and March 24, 2015 (other than any portions of the reports furnished and not filed); and
- Description of our class A common stock contained in our Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on June 22, 1995, including any amendments or reports filed for the purpose of updating such description.

You may request a copy of these filings, at no cost, by writing or telephoning us at the following address or phone number:

Watts Water Technologies, Inc. 815 Chestnut Street North Andover, Massachusetts 01845 Telephone: (978) 688-1811 Attn: Corporate Secretary

4

Table of Contents

#### FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus include forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended, or the Exchange Act. Any statements contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus and the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus that are not statements of historical fact should be considered forward-looking statements. You can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of the words like believes, expects, anticipates, plans, may, similar expressions, whether in the negative or affirmative. These forward-looking statements are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts and projections about the industry and markets in which we operate and management s beliefs and assumptions, and should be read in conjunction with the risk factors and cautionary statements described in the other documents we file from time to time with the SEC, specifically our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and our Current Reports on Form 8-K. We cannot guarantee that we actually will achieve the plans, intentions or expectations disclosed in the forward-looking statements made. There are a number of important risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated by such forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, without limitation, risks that emerge from time to time that are not possible for us to predict. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this prospectus (unless another date is indicated). We disclaim any obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except to the extent required by law.

5

#### **Table of Contents**

#### WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Watts Regulator Co. was founded by Joseph E. Watts in 1874 in Lawrence, Massachusetts. Watts Regulator Co. started as a small machine shop supplying parts to the New England textile mills of the 19th century and grew into a global manufacturer of products and systems focused on the control, conservation and quality of water and the comfort and safety of the people using it. Watts Water Technologies, Inc. was incorporated in Delaware in 1985 and became the parent company of Watts Regulator Co.

Our strategy is to be the leading provider of products that improve the quality, conservation, safety, and control of water in residential, commercial and industrial markets in the Americas and EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa) and to expand our presence in Asia-Pacific. Our primary objective is to grow earnings by increasing sales within existing markets, expanding into new markets, leveraging our distribution channels and customer base, making selected acquisitions, reducing manufacturing costs and advocating for the development and enforcement of industry standards.

We intend to continue to expand organically by introducing products in existing markets, by enhancing our preferred brands, by developing new complementary products, by promoting plumbing code development to drive the need for safety and water quality products and by continually improving merchandising in our wholesale distribution channels. We target selected new product and geographic markets based on growth potential, including our ability to leverage our existing distribution channels. Additionally, we leverage our distribution channels through the introduction of new products, as well as the integration of products of our acquired companies.

We intend to continue to generate incremental growth by targeting selected acquisitions, both in our core markets as well as new complementary markets. Our acquisition strategy focuses on businesses that manufacture preferred brand name products that address our themes of water quality, conservation, safety, control, and comfort in our primary or related complementary markets. We target businesses that will provide us with one or more of the following: an entry into new markets, an increase in shelf space with existing customers, strong brand names, a new or improved technology or an expansion of the breadth of our product offerings.

We are committed to reducing our manufacturing and operating costs through a combination of manufacturing in lower-cost countries, using Lean and Six Sigma to drive continuous improvement across all key processes, and consolidating our diverse manufacturing operations in Americas, EMEA and Asia-Pacific. We have a number of manufacturing facilities in lower-cost regions such as Mexico, China, Bulgaria and Tunisia. In recent years, we have announced several global restructuring plans to reduce our manufacturing footprint in order to reduce our costs and to realize additional operating efficiencies.

Our products are sold to wholesale distributors and dealers, original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) and major do-it-yourself (DIY) chains. Most of our sales are for products that have been approved under regulatory standards incorporated into state and municipal plumbing, heating, building and fire protection codes in North America and Europe. We have consistently advocated for the development and enforcement of plumbing codes and are committed to providing products to meet these standards, particularly for safety and control valve products.

Additionally, a majority of our manufacturing facilities are ISO 9000, 9001 or 9002 certified by the International Organization for Standardization.

Our class A common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol WTS. Our principal executive offices are located at 815 Chestnut Street, North Andover, Massachusetts 01845, and our telephone number at that location is (978) 688-1811.

**Table of Contents** 

#### RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

The following table sets forth our ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the periods indicated. Fixed charges consist of interest expense, capitalized interest, amortization of premiums, discounts and capitalized expenses relating to indebtedness, and the interest portion of net rent expense which is deemed to be representative of the interest factor. The ratio of earnings to fixed charges is calculated as income from continuing operations, before provision for income taxes, less net unconsolidated affiliates interests, plus fixed charges (excluding capitalized interest), plus amortization of capitalized interest, with the sum divided by fixed charges.

		Year	s Ended December 31,		
	2014	2013	2012	2011	2010
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges(1)	4.4x	4.4x	4.5x	4.7x	4.7x

<sup>(1)</sup> Our ratios of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends for the periods indicated above are the same as our ratios of earnings to fixed charges set forth above because we had no shares of preferred stock outstanding during the periods indicated and currently have no shares of preferred stock outstanding.

## RISK FACTORS

Investing in our securities involves risks. You should carefully consider the risks described in any prospectus supplement and in the documents incorporated by reference herein before making an investment decision. These risks are not the only ones facing our company. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business operations. Our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by the materialization of any of these risks. The trading price of our securities could decline due to the materialization of any of these risks, and you may lose all or part of your investment. This prospectus, any prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated herein by reference may also contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including the risks described in the documents incorporated herein by reference, including documents we file with the SEC after the date of this prospectus and which are deemed incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

## USE OF PROCEEDS

We intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of the securities offered under this prospectus for general corporate purposes unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement. General corporate purposes may include the acquisition of companies or businesses, repayment and refinancing of debt, working capital and capital expenditures. The prospectus supplement with respect to an offering of securities may identify different or additional uses for the proceeds of that offering. We may temporarily invest the net proceeds in investment-grade, interest-bearing securities until they are used for their stated purpose. We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of securities covered by this prospectus that are sold by any selling security holders.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES

Our debt securities, consisting of notes, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness, may be issued from time to time in one or more series pursuant to, in the case of senior debt securities, a senior indenture to be entered into between us and a trustee to be named therein, and in the case of subordinated debt securities, a subordinated indenture to be entered into between us and a trustee to be named therein. The terms of our debt securities will include those set forth in the indentures and those made a part of the indentures by the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or the Trust Indenture Act.

Because the following is only a summary of selected provisions of the indentures and the debt securities, it does not contain all information that may be important to you. This summary is not complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the base indentures and any supplemental indentures thereto or officer—s certificate or resolution of our board of directors related thereto. We urge you to read the indentures because the indentures, not this description, define the rights of the holders of the debt securities. We expect that the senior indenture and the subordinated indenture will be substantially in the forms included as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part.

#### General

The senior debt securities will constitute our unsecured and unsubordinated obligations and will rank pari passu with our other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations. The subordinated debt securities will constitute our unsecured and subordinated obligations and will be junior in right of payment to our Senior Indebtedness (including senior debt securities), as described under the heading Certain Terms of the Subordinated Debt Securities Subordination.

The debt securities will be our unsecured obligations. Any secured debt or other secured obligations will be effectively senior to the debt securities to the extent of the value of the assets securing such debt or other obligations.

The applicable prospectus supplement will include any additional or different terms of the debt securities being offered, including the following terms:

- the debt securities designation;
- the aggregate principal amount of the debt securities;
- the percentage of their principal amount (i.e., price) at which the debt securities will be issued;

•	the date or dates on which the debt securities will mature and the right, if any, to extend such date or dates;
•	the rate or rates, if any, per year, at which the debt securities will bear interest, or the method of determining such rate or rates
• manner of detern interest payment	the date or dates from which such interest will accrue, the interest payment dates on which such interest will be payable or the nination of such interest payment dates and the record dates for the determination of holders to whom interest is payable on any date;
•	the right, if any, to extend the interest payment periods and the duration of that extension;
	8

## Table of Contents

•	the manner of paying principal and interest and the place or places where principal and interest will be payable;
•	provisions for a sinking fund, purchase fund or other analogous fund, if any;
• securities may be	the period or periods, if any, within which, the price or prices at which, and the terms and conditions upon which the debt redeemed, in whole or in part, at our option or at your option;
•	the form of the debt securities;
• amounts in respec	any provisions for payment of additional amounts for taxes and any provision for redemption, if we must pay such additional ct of any debt security;
•	the terms and conditions, if any, upon which we may have to repay the debt securities early at your option;
• currency units in	the currency, currencies or currency units in which the debt securities will be denominated and the currency, currencies or which principal and interest, if any, on the debt securities may be payable;
• conversion or exc	the terms and conditions upon which conversion or exchange of the debt securities may be effected, if any, including the initial change price or rate and any adjustments thereto and the period or periods when a conversion or exchange may be effected;
•	whether and upon what terms the debt securities may be defeased;
•	any events of default or covenants in addition to or in lieu of those set forth in the indenture;
•	provisions for electronic issuance of debt securities or for debt securities in uncertificated form; and

•	other terms of the debt securities, including any terms which may be required by or advisable under applicable laws or le in connection with the marketing of the debt securities.
When we refer to pr	ncipal in this section with reference to the debt securities, we are also referring to premium, if any.
of any such series ran accruing prior to the i securities). Such furth	time, without notice to or the consent of the holders of any series of debt securities, create and issue further debt securities requally with the debt securities of such series in all respects (or in all respects other than (1) the payment of interest sue date of such further debt securities or (2) the first payment of interest following the issue date of such further debt er debt securities may be consolidated and form a single series with the debt securities of such series and have the same emption or otherwise as the debt securities of such series.
restrictions set forth in	securities for exchange and you may present debt securities for transfer in the manner, at the places and subject to the the debt securities and the applicable prospectus supplement. We will provide you those services without charge, e to pay any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection with any exchange or transfer, as set forth in the

Debt securities may bear interest at a fixed rate or a floating rate. Debt securities bearing no interest or interest at a rate that at the time of issuance is below the prevailing market rate (original issue discount securities) may be sold at a discount below their stated principal amount. Special U.S. federal income tax considerations

#### **Table of Contents**

applicable to any such discounted debt securities or to certain debt securities issued at par which are treated as having been issued at a discount for U.S. federal income tax purposes will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

We may issue debt securities with the principal amount payable on any principal payment date, or the amount of interest payable on any interest payment date, to be determined by reference to one or more currency exchange rates, securities or baskets of securities, commodity prices or indices. You may receive a payment of principal on any principal payment date, or a payment of interest on any interest payment date, that is greater than or less than the amount of principal or interest otherwise payable on such dates, depending on the value on such dates of the applicable currency, security or basket of securities, commodity or index. Information as to the methods for determining the amount of principal or interest payable on any date, the currencies, securities or baskets of securities, commodities or indices to which the amount payable on such date is linked and certain additional tax considerations will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.

#### Certain Terms of the Senior Debt Securities

Covenants. Unless otherwise indicated in a prospectus supplement, the senior debt securities will not contain any financial or restrictive covenants, including covenants restricting either us or any of our subsidiaries from incurring, issuing, assuming or guaranteeing any indebtedness secured by a lien on any of our or our subsidiaries property or capital stock, or restricting either us or any of our subsidiaries from entering into sale and leaseback transactions.

Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets. Unless we indicate otherwise in a prospectus supplement, we may not consolidate with or merge into any other person, in a transaction in which we are not the surviving corporation, or convey, transfer or lease our properties and assets substantially as an entirety to any person, unless:

- the successor entity, if any, is a U.S. corporation (subject to certain exceptions provided for in the senior indenture);
- the successor entity assumes our obligations on the senior debt securities and under the senior indenture;
- immediately after giving effect to the transaction, no default or event of default shall have occurred and be continuing; and
- certain other conditions are met.

No Protection in the Event of a Change in Control. Unless otherwise indicated in a prospectus supplement with respect to a particular series of senior debt securities, the senior debt securities will not contain any provisions that may afford holders of the senior debt securities protection in the event we have a change in control or in the event of a highly leveraged transaction (whether or not such transaction results in a change in control).

Events of Default. An event of default for any series of senior debt securities is defined under the senior indenture as being:

our default in the payment of principal or premium on the senior debt securities of such series when due and payable whether redemption, by declaration or otherwise (and if specified for such series, the continuance of such failure for a specified period):
our default in the payment of interest on any senior debt securities of such series when due and payable, if that default eriod of 90 days (or such other period as may be specified for such series);

#### **Table of Contents**

•	our default in the performance of or breach of any of our other covenants or agreements in the senior indenture applicable to
senior debt secur	ities of such series, other than a covenant breach which is specifically dealt with elsewhere in the senior indenture, and that
default or breach	continues for a period of 90 days after we receive written notice from the trustee or from the holders of 25% or more in
aggregate princip	pal amount of the senior debt securities of such series;

- certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency, whether or not voluntary; and
- any other event of default provided for in such series of senior debt securities.

The default by us under any other debt, including any other series of debt securities, is not a default under the senior indenture.

If an event of default other than an event of default specified in the fourth bullet point above occurs with respect to a series of senior debt securities and is continuing under the senior indenture, then, and in each and every such case, either the trustee or the holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of such series then outstanding under the senior indenture (each such series voting as a separate class) by written notice to us and to the trustee, if such notice is given by the holders, may, and the trustee at the request of such holders shall, declare the principal amount of and accrued interest on such series of senior debt securities to be immediately due and payable, and upon this declaration, the same shall become immediately due and payable.

If an event of default specified in the fourth bullet point above occurs with respect to us and is continuing, the entire principal amount of, and accrued interest, if any, on each series of senior debt securities then outstanding shall become immediately due and payable.

Unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement relating to a series of senior debt securities originally issued at a discount, the amount due upon acceleration shall include only the original issue price of the senior debt securities, the amount of original issue discount accrued to the date of acceleration and accrued interest, if any.

Upon certain conditions, declarations of acceleration may be rescinded and annulled and past defaults may be waived by the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of all the senior debt securities of such series affected by the default, each series voting as a separate class (or, of all the senior debt securities, as the case may be, voting as a single class). Furthermore, prior to a declaration of acceleration and subject to various provisions in the senior indenture, the holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of a series of senior debt securities, by notice to the trustee, may waive an existing default or event of default with respect to such senior debt securities and its consequences, except a default in the payment of principal of or interest on such senior debt securities or in respect of a covenant or provision of the senior indenture which cannot be modified or amended without the consent of the holders of each such senior debt security. Upon any such waiver, such default shall cease to exist, and any event of default with respect to such senior debt securities shall be deemed to have been cured, for every purpose of the senior indenture; but no such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other default or event of default or impair any right consequent thereto.

The holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of a series of senior debt securities may direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee or exercising any trust or power conferred on the trustee with respect to such senior debt securities. However, the trustee may refuse to follow any direction that conflicts with law or the senior indenture, that may involve the trustee in personal liability, or that the trustee determines in good faith may be unduly prejudicial to the rights of holders of such series of senior debt securities not joining in the giving of such direction and may take any other action it deems proper that is not inconsistent with any such direction received from holders of such series of senior debt securities. A holder may not pursue any remedy with respect to the senior indenture or any series of senior debt securities unless:

• the holder gives the trustee written notice of a continuing event of default;

11

## Table of Contents

• the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of such series of senior debt securities make a written request trustee to pursue the remedy in respect of such event of default;	to the
• the requesting holder or holders offer the trustee indemnity satisfactory to the trustee against any costs, liability or expe	nse;
• the trustee does not comply with the request within 60 days after receipt of the request and the offer of indemnity; and	
• during such 60-day period, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of such series of senior debt securiti not give the trustee a direction that is inconsistent with the request.	es do
These limitations, however, do not apply to the right of any holder of a senior debt security to receive payment of the principal of and into such senior debt security in accordance with the terms of such debt security, or to bring suit for the enforcement of any such payment in accordance with the terms of such debt security, on or after the due date for the senior debt securities, which right shall not be impaired or affected without the consent of the holder.	
The senior indenture requires certain of our officers to certify, on or before a fixed date in each year in which any senior debt security is outstanding, as to their knowledge of our compliance with all conditions and covenants under the senior indenture.	
Satisfaction and Discharge. We can satisfy and discharge our obligations to holders of any series of debt securities if:	
• we pay or cause to be paid, as and when due and payable, the principal of and any interest on all senior debt securities of series outstanding under the senior indenture; or	of such
• all senior debt securities of such series have become due and payable or will become due and payable within one year (to be called for redemption within one year) and we deposit in trust a combination of cash and U.S. government or U.S. government agen obligations that will generate enough cash to make interest, principal and any other payments on the debt securities of that series on their due dates.	ncy
Under current U.S. federal income tax law, the deposit and our legal release from the debt securities would be treated as though we took be your debt securities and gave you your share of the cash and debt securities or bonds deposited in trust. In that event, you could recognize or loss on the debt securities you give back to us. Purchasers of the debt securities should consult their own advisers with respect to the tax consequences to them of such deposit and discharge, including the applicability and effect of tax laws other than the U.S. federal income law.	e gain ıx

*Defeasance*. Unless the applicable prospectus supplement provides otherwise, the following discussion of legal defeasance and discharge and covenant defeasance will apply to any series of debt securities issued under the indentures.

Legal Defeasance. We can legally release ourselves from any payment or other obligations on the debt securities of any series (called legal defeasance ) if certain conditions are met, including the following:

• We deposit in trust for your benefit and the benefit of all other direct holders of the debt securities of the same series a combination of cash and U.S. government or U.S. government agency obligations that will generate enough cash to make interest, principal and any other payments on the debt securities of that series on their various due dates.

12

## Table of Contents

• There is a change in current U.S. federal income tax law or an IRS ruling that lets us make the above deposit without causing you to be taxed on the debt securities any differently than if we did not make the deposit and instead repaid the debt securities ourselves when due. Under current U.S. federal income tax law, the deposit and our legal release from the debt securities would be treated as though we took back your debt securities and gave you your share of the cash and debt securities or bonds deposited in trust. In that event, you could recognize gain or loss on the debt securities you give back to us.
• We deliver to the trustee a legal opinion of our counsel confirming the tax law change or ruling described above.
If we ever did accomplish legal defeasance, as described above, you would have to rely solely on the trust deposit for repayment of the debt securities. You could not look to us for repayment in the event of any shortfall.
Covenant Defeasance. Without any change of current U.S. federal tax law, we can make the same type of deposit described above and be released from some of the covenants in the debt securities (called covenant defeasance). In that event, you would lose the protection of those covenants but would gain the protection of having money and securities set aside in trust to repay the debt securities. In order to achieve covenant defeasance, we must do the following (among other things):
• We must deposit in trust for your benefit and the benefit of all other direct holders of the debt securities of the same series a combination of cash and U.S. government or U.S. government agency obligations that will generate enough cash to make interest, principal and any other payments on the debt securities of that series on their various due dates.
• We must deliver to the trustee a legal opinion of our counsel confirming that under current U.S. federal income tax law we may make the above deposit without causing you to be taxed on the debt securities any differently than if we did not make the deposit and instead repaid the debt securities ourselves when due.
If we accomplish covenant defeasance, you can still look to us for repayment of the debt securities if there were a shortfall in the trust deposit. In fact, if one of the events of default occurred (such as our bankruptcy) and the debt securities become immediately due and payable, there may be such a shortfall. Depending on the events causing the default, you may not be able to obtain payment of the shortfall.
Modification and Waiver. We and the trustee may amend or supplement the senior indenture or the senior debt securities without the consent of any holder:
• to convey, transfer, assign, mortgage or pledge any assets as security for the senior debt securities of one or more series;

• obligations under	to evidence the succession of a corporation to us, and the assumption by such successor of our covenants, agreements and the senior indenture;
• senior indenture of supplement;	to cure any ambiguity, defect or inconsistency in the senior indenture or in any supplemental indenture or to conform the or the senior debt securities to the description of senior debt securities of such series set forth in this prospectus or a prospectu
• changes as shall l	to evidence and provide for the acceptance of appointment under the senior indenture by a successor trustee, or to make such be necessary to provide for or facilitate the administration of the trusts in the senior indenture by more than one trustee;
•	to provide for or add guarantors with respect to the senior debt securities of any series;
	13

## Table of Contents

•	to establish the form or forms or terms of the senior debt securities as permitted by the senior indenture;
• authentication an	to add to, delete from or revise the conditions, limitations and restrictions on the authorized amount, terms, purposes of issued delivery of any series of senior debt securities;
• make the occurre event of default;	to add to our covenants such new covenants, restrictions, conditions or provisions for the protection of the holders, and to ence, or the occurrence and continuance, of a default in any such additional covenants, restrictions, conditions or provisions are
• outstanding; or	to make any change to the senior debt securities of any series so long as no senior debt securities of such series are
•	to make any change that does not adversely affect the rights of any holder in any material respect.
provision of the s than a majority o	ats and modifications of the senior indenture or the senior debt securities issued may be made, and our compliance with any senior indenture with respect to any series of senior debt securities may be waived, with the consent of the holders of not less of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding senior debt securities of all series affected by the amendment or ting as one class); provided, however, that each affected holder must consent to any modification, amendment or waiver that:
•	extends the stated maturity of the principal of, or any installment of interest on, any senior debt securities of such series;
•	reduces the principal amount of, or interest on, any senior debt securities of such series;
•	changes the place or currency of payment of principal of, or interest on, any senior debt securities of such series;
• provable in bank	reduces the principal amount of original issue discount securities payable upon acceleration of maturity or the amount ruptcy;
•	changes the provisions for calculating the optional redemption price, including the definitions relating thereto:

•	changes the provisions relating to the waiver of past defaults or changes or impairs the right of holders to receive payment or
to institute suit fo	or the enforcement of any payment of any senior debt securities of such series on or after the due date therefor;
	reduces the above-stated percentage of outstanding senior debt securities of such series the consent of whose holders is ify or amend or to waive certain provisions of or defaults under the senior indenture;
•	waives a default in the payment of principal of or interest on the senior debt securities;
• or repurchase at t	adversely affects the rights of such holder under any mandatory redemption or repurchase provision or any right of redemption he option of such holder; or
• percentage or to p	modifies any of the provisions of these restrictions on amendments and modifications, except to increase any required provide that certain other provisions cannot be modified or
	14

#### **Table of Contents**

waived without the consent of the holder of each senior debt security of such series affected by the modification.

It shall not be necessary for the consent of the holders under this section of the senior indenture to approve the particular form of any proposed amendment, supplement or waiver, but it shall be sufficient if such consent approves the substance thereof. After an amendment, supplement or waiver under this section of the senior indenture becomes effective, the trustee must give to the holders affected thereby certain notice briefly describing the amendment, supplement or waiver. We will mail supplemental indentures to holders upon request. Any failure by the trustee to give such notice, or any defect therein, shall not, however, in any way impair or affect the validity of any such amendment, supplemental indenture or waiver.

No Personal Liability of Incorporators, Stockholders, Officers, Directors. The senior indenture provides that no recourse shall be had under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement of ours in the senior indenture or any supplemental indenture, or in any of the senior debt securities or because of the creation of any indebtedness represented thereby, against any of our incorporators, stockholders, officers or directors, past, present or future, or of any predecessor or successor entity thereof under any law, statute or constitutional provision or by the enforcement of any assessment or by any legal or equitable proceeding or otherwise. Each holder, by accepting the senior debt securities, waives and releases all such liability.

Concerning the Trustee. The senior indenture provides that, except during the continuance of an event of default, the trustee will not be liable, except for the performance of such duties as are specifically set forth in the senior indenture. If an event of default has occurred and is continuing, the trustee will exercise such rights and powers vested in it under the senior indenture and will use the same degree of care and skill in its exercise as a prudent person would exercise under the circumstances in the conduct of such person sown affairs.

The senior indenture and the provisions of the Trust Indenture Act incorporated by reference therein contain limitations on the rights of the trustee thereunder, should it become a creditor of ours or any of our subsidiaries, to obtain payment of claims in certain cases or to realize on certain property received by it in respect of any such claims, as security or otherwise. The trustee is permitted to engage in other transactions, provided that if it acquires any conflicting interest (as defined in the Trust Indenture Act), it must eliminate such conflict or resign.

We may have normal banking relationships with the senior trustee in the ordinary course of business.

*Unclaimed Funds*. All funds deposited with the trustee or any paying agent for the payment of principal, premium, interest or additional amounts in respect of the senior debt securities that remain unclaimed for two years after the date upon which such principal, premium or interest became due and payable will be repaid to us. Thereafter, any right of any holder of senior debt securities to such funds shall be enforceable only against us, and the trustee and paying agents will have no liability therefor.

Governing Law. The senior indenture and the debt securities will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal laws of the State of New York.

#### **Certain Terms of the Subordinated Debt Securities**

Other than the terms of the subordinated indenture and subordinated debt securities relating to subordination, or otherwise as described in the prospectus supplement relating to a particular series of subordinated debt securities, the terms of the subordinated indenture and subordinated debt securities are identical in all material respects to the terms of the senior indenture and senior debt securities. Additional or different subordination terms may be specified in the prospectus supplement applicable to a particular series.

Subordination. The indebtedness evidenced by the subordinated debt securities is subordinate to the prior payment in full of all our Senior Indebtedness, as defined in the subordinated indenture. During the continuance beyond any applicable grace period of any default in the payment of principal, premium, interest or any other payment due on any of our Senior Indebtedness, we may not make any payment of principal of, or interest on the subordinated debt securities (except for certain sinking fund payments). In addition, upon any payment or distribution of our assets upon any dissolution, winding up, liquidation or reorganization, the payment of the

#### Table of Contents

principal of and interest on the subordinated debt securities will be subordinated to the extent provided in the subordinated indenture in right of
payment to the prior payment in full of all our Senior Indebtedness. Because of this subordination, if we dissolve or otherwise liquidate, holders
of our subordinated debt securities may receive less, ratably, than holders of our Senior Indebtedness. The subordination provisions do not
prevent the occurrence of an event of default under the subordinated indenture.

The term Senior Indebtedness of a person means with respect to such person the principal of, premium, if any, interest on, and any other payment due pursuant to any of the following, whether outstanding on the date of the subordinated indenture or incurred by that person in the future:

- all of the indebtedness of that person for money borrowed;
- all of the indebtedness of that person evidenced by notes, debentures, bonds or other securities sold by that person for money;
- all of the lease obligations which are capitalized on the books of that person in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
- all indebtedness of others of the kinds described in the first two bullet points above and all lease obligations of others of the kind described in the third bullet point above that the person, in any manner, assumes or guarantees or that the person in effect guarantees through an agreement to purchase, whether that agreement is contingent or otherwise; and
- all renewals, extensions or refundings of indebtedness of the kinds described in the first, second or fourth bullet point above and all renewals or extensions of leases of the kinds described in the third or fourth bullet point above;

unless, in the case of any particular indebtedness, renewal, extension or refunding, the instrument creating or evidencing it or the assumption or guarantee relating to it expressly provides that such indebtedness, renewal, extension or refunding is not superior in right of payment to the subordinated debt securities. Our senior debt securities constitute Senior Indebtedness for purposes of the subordinated debt indenture.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK

The following summary contains a description of the general terms and provisions of the preferred stock that we may issue. Other terms of any series of preferred stock will be described in the prospectus supplement relating to that series of preferred stock. The terms of any series of preferred stock may differ from the terms described below. Certain provisions of the preferred stock described below and in any prospectus supplement are not complete. You should refer to our restated certificate of incorporation, as amended, and amended and restated by-laws, and the certificate of designations which will be filed with the SEC in connection with the offering of a particular series of preferred stock.

#### General

Under our restated certificate of incorporation, we have authority to issue 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, \$0.10 par value per share. As of March 20, 2015, no shares of preferred stock were issued or outstanding.

Pursuant to our restated certificate of incorporation, we are authorized to issue blank check preferred stock, which may be issued from time to time in one or more series upon authorization by our board of directors. Our board of directors, without further approval of the stockholders, is authorized to fix the dividend rights and terms, conversion rights, voting rights, redemption rights and terms, liquidation preferences, and any other rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions applicable to each series of preferred stock; provided, however, that we cannot issue any shares of preferred stock with more than one vote per share or preferred stock convertible into our class B common stock without the prior approval of a majority in interest of the holders of the class A common stock and class B common stock, voting as separate classes. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes could, among other things, adversely affect the voting power of the holders of our class A common stock and class B common stock and, under certain circumstances, make it more difficult for a third party to gain control of us, discourage bids for our class A common stock and class B common stock at a premium or otherwise adversely affect the market price of the class A common stock and class B common stock.

The preferred stock has the terms described below unless otherwise provided in the prospectus supplement relating to a particular series of preferred stock. You should read the prospectus supplement relating to the particular series of preferred stock being offered for specific terms, including:

- the designation and stated value per share of the preferred stock and the number of shares offered;
- the amount of liquidation preference per share;
- the price at which the preferred stock will be issued;

• cumulative or nor	the dividend rate, or method of calculation, the dates on which dividends will be payable, whether dividends will be neumulative and, if cumulative, the dates from which dividends will commence to accumulate;
•	any redemption or sinking fund provisions;
• preferred stock is	if other than the currency of the United States, the currency or currencies including composite currencies in which the denominated and/or in which payments will or may be payable;
•	any conversion provisions;
•	whether we have elected to offer depositary shares as described under Description of Depositary Shares; and
	17

## Table of Contents

• any other rights, preferences, privileges, limitations and restrictions on the preferred stock.
The preferred stock will, when issued, be fully paid and nonassessable. Unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement, each series of preferred stock will rank equally as to dividends and liquidation rights in all respects with each other series of preferred stock. The rights of holders of shares of each series of preferred stock will be subordinate to those of our general creditors.
As described under Description of Depositary Shares, we may, at our option, with respect to any series of preferred stock, elect to offer fractional interests in shares of preferred stock, and provide for the issuance of depositary receipts representing depositary shares, each of which will represent a fractional interest in a share of the series of preferred stock. The fractional interest will be specified in the prospectus supplement relating to a particular series of preferred stock.
Rank
Unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement, the preferred stock will, with respect to dividend rights and rights upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up our affairs, rank:
• senior to all classes or series of our common stock and to all equity securities ranking junior to such preferred stock with respect to dividend rights or rights upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up our affairs;
• on a parity with all equity securities issued by us, the terms of which specifically provide that such equity securities rank on a parity with the preferred stock with respect to dividend rights or rights upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our affairs; and
• junior to all equity securities issued by us, the terms of which specifically provide that such equity securities rank senior to the preferred stock with respect to dividend rights or rights upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our affairs.
The term equity securities does not include convertible debt securities.
Dividends

Holders of the preferred stock of each series will be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by our board of directors, cash dividends at such rates and on such dates described in the prospectus supplement. Different series of preferred stock may be entitled to dividends at different rates

or based on different methods of calculation. The dividend rate may be fixed or variable or both. Dividends will be payable to the holders of record as they appear on our stock books on record dates fixed by our board of directors, as specified in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Dividends on any series of preferred stock may be cumulative or noncumulative, as described in the applicable prospectus supplement. If our board of directors does not declare a dividend payable on a dividend payment date on any series of noncumulative preferred stock, then the holders of that noncumulative preferred stock will have no right to receive a dividend for that dividend payment date, and we will have no obligation to pay the dividend accrued for that period, whether or not dividends on that series are declared payable on any future dividend payment dates. Dividends on any series of cumulative preferred stock will accrue from the date we initially issue shares of such series or such other date specified in the applicable prospectus supplement.

No dividends may be declared or paid or funds set apart for the payment of any dividends on any parity securities unless full dividends have been paid or set apart for payment on the preferred stock. If full dividends are not paid, the preferred stock will share dividends pro rata with the parity securities. No dividends may be declared or paid or funds set apart for the payment of dividends on any junior securities unless full cumulative dividends for all

#### **Table of Contents**

dividend periods terminating on or prior to the date of the declaration or payment will have been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the payment set apart for payment on the preferred stock.

### **Liquidation Preference**

Upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our affairs, then, before we make any distribution or payment to the holders of any common stock or any other class or series of our capital stock ranking junior to the preferred stock in the distribution of assets upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our affairs, the holders of each series of preferred stock shall be entitled to receive out of assets legally available for distribution to stockholders, liquidating distributions in the amount of the liquidation preference per share set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, plus any accrued and unpaid dividends thereon. Such dividends will not include any accumulation in respect of unpaid noncumulative dividends for prior dividend periods. Unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement, after payment of the full amount of their liquidating distributions, the holders of preferred stock will have no right or claim to any of our remaining assets. Upon any such voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up, if our available assets are insufficient to pay the amount of the liquidating distributions on all outstanding preferred stock and the corresponding amounts payable on all other classes or series of our capital stock ranking on parity with the preferred stock and all other such classes or series of capital stock ranking on parity with the preferred stock in the distribution of assets, then the holders of the preferred stock and all other such classes or series of capital stock will share ratably in any such distribution of assets in proportion to the full liquidating distributions to which they would otherwise be entitled.

Upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up and if we have made liquidating distributions in full to all holders of preferred stock, we will distribute our remaining assets among the holders of any other classes or series of capital stock ranking junior to the preferred stock according to their respective rights and preferences and, in each case, according to their respective number of shares. For such purposes, our consolidation or merger with or into any other corporation, trust or entity, or the sale, lease or conveyance of all or substantially all of our property or assets will not be deemed to constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our affairs.

### Redemption

If so provided in the applicable prospectus supplement, the preferred stock will be subject to mandatory redemption or redemption at our option, as a whole or in part, in each case upon the terms, at the times and at the redemption prices set forth in such prospectus supplement.

The prospectus supplement relating to a series of preferred stock that is subject to mandatory redemption will specify the number of shares of preferred stock that shall be redeemed by us in each year commencing after a date to be specified, at a redemption price per share to be specified, together with an amount equal to all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon to the date of redemption. Unless the shares have a cumulative dividend, such accrued dividends will not include any accumulation in respect of unpaid dividends for prior dividend periods. We may pay the redemption price in cash or other property, as specified in the applicable prospectus supplement. If the redemption price for preferred stock of any series is payable only from the net proceeds of the issuance of shares of our capital stock, the terms of such preferred stock may provide that, if no such shares of our capital stock shall have been issued or to the extent the net proceeds from any issuance are insufficient to pay in full the aggregate redemption price then due, such preferred stock shall automatically and mandatorily be converted into the applicable shares of our capital stock pursuant to conversion provisions specified in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, we will not redeem any preferred stock of a series unless:

•	if that series of preferred stock has a cumulative dividend, we have declared and paid or contemporaneously declare and pay or
set aside funds to	pay full cumulative dividends on the preferred stock for the past and current dividend period; or

• if such series of preferred stock does not have a cumulative dividend, we have declared and paid or contemporaneously declare and pay or set aside funds to pay full dividends for the current dividend period.

19

# Table of Contents

In addition, we w	ill not acquire any preferred stock of a series unless:
	if that series of preferred stock has a cumulative dividend, we have declared and paid or contemporaneously declare and pay or pay full cumulative dividends on all outstanding shares of such series of preferred stock for all past dividend periods and the lend period; or
	if that series of preferred stock does not have a cumulative dividend, we have declared and paid or contemporaneously declare de funds to pay full dividends on the preferred stock of such series for the then current dividend period.
terms to holders of	time we may purchase or acquire preferred stock of that series (1) pursuant to a purchase or exchange offer made on the same of all outstanding preferred stock of such series or (2) by conversion into or exchange for shares of our capital stock ranking erred stock of such series as to dividends and upon liquidation.
be redeemed pro	of the outstanding shares of preferred stock of any series are to be redeemed, we will determine the number of shares that may rata from the holders of record of such shares in proportion to the number of such shares held or for which redemption is a holder or by any other equitable manner that we determine. Such determination will reflect adjustments to avoid redemption es.
	specified in the prospectus supplement, we will mail notice of redemption at least 30 days but not more than 60 days before the o each holder of record of preferred stock to be redeemed at the address shown on our stock transfer books. Each notice shall
•	the redemption date;
•	the number of shares and series of preferred stock to be redeemed;
•	the redemption price;
•	the place or places where certificates for such preferred stock are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price;

•	that dividends on the shares to be redeemed will cease to accrue on such redemption date;
•	the date on which the holder s conversion rights, if any, as to such shares shall terminate; and
• redeemed.	the specific number of shares to be redeemed from each such holder if fewer than all the shares of any series are to be
any shares so cal	nption has been given and we have set aside the funds necessary for such redemption in trust for the benefit of the holders of led for redemption, then from and after the redemption date, dividends will cease to accrue on such shares, and all rights of the hares will terminate, except the right to receive the redemption price.
Voting Rights	
	red stock will not have any voting rights, except as described in the next paragraph, as otherwise from time to time required by ed in the applicable prospectus supplement.
	20

#### **Table of Contents**

Unless otherwise provided for any series of preferred stock, so long as any preferred stock of a series remains outstanding, we will not, without the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of the preferred stock of such series outstanding at the time, given in person or by proxy, either in writing or at a meeting with each of such series voting separately as a class:

- authorize, or create, or increase the authorized or issued amount of, any class or series of shares of capital stock ranking senior to such series of preferred stock with respect to payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, or reclassify any of our authorized shares of capital stock into such shares, or create, authorize or issue any obligation or security convertible into or evidencing the right to purchase any such shares; or
- amend, alter or repeal the provisions of our restated certificate of incorporation or the amendment to our certificate of incorporation designating the terms for such series of preferred stock, whether by merger, consolidation or otherwise, so as to materially and adversely affect any right, preference, privilege or voting power of such series of preferred stock or the holders thereof.

Notwithstanding the preceding bullet point, if the preferred stock remains outstanding with the terms thereof materially unchanged, the occurrence of any of the events described above shall not be deemed to materially and adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting power of holders of preferred stock, even if upon the occurrence of such an event we may not be the surviving entity. In addition, any increase in the amount of (1) authorized preferred stock or the creation or issuance of any other series of preferred stock, or (2) authorized shares of such series or any other series of preferred stock, in each case ranking on parity with or junior to the preferred stock of such series with respect to payment of dividends or the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, shall not be deemed to materially and adversely affect such rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers.

The foregoing voting provisions will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the act with respect to which such vote would otherwise be required will be effected, we have redeemed or called for redemption all outstanding shares of such series of preferred stock and, if called for redemption, have deposited sufficient funds in trust to effect such redemption.

#### **Conversion Rights**

The terms and conditions, if any, upon which any series of preferred stock is convertible into class A common stock will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement relating thereto. Such terms will include the number of shares of class A common stock into which the shares of preferred stock are convertible, the conversion price, rate or manner of calculation thereof, the conversion period, provisions as to whether conversion will be at our option or at the option of the holders of the preferred stock, the events requiring an adjustment of the conversion price and provisions affecting conversion in the event of the redemption.

### Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for the preferred stock will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.

<b>7D 1</b>	1			c.	$\sim$			
Tal	٦I	$\boldsymbol{e}$	$\cap$ 1	1		۱n	tei	ntc

#### DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES

#### General

We may, at our option, elect to offer fractional shares of preferred stock, which we call depositary shares, rather than full shares of preferred stock. If we do, we will issue to the public receipts, called depositary receipts, for depositary shares, each of which will represent a fraction, to be described in the applicable prospectus supplement, of a share of a particular series of preferred stock. Unless otherwise provided in the prospectus supplement, each owner of a depositary share will be entitled, in proportion to the applicable fractional interest in a share of preferred stock represented by the depositary share, to all the rights and preferences of the preferred stock represented by the depositary share. Those rights include dividend, voting, redemption, conversion and liquidation rights.

The shares of preferred stock underlying the depositary shares will be deposited with a bank or trust company selected by us to act as depositary, under a depositary agreement between us, the depositary and the holders of the depositary receipts. The depositary will be the transfer agent, registrar and dividend disbursing agent for the depositary shares.

The depositary shares will be evidenced by depositary receipts issued pursuant to the depositary agreement. Holders of depositary receipts agree to be bound by the depositary agreement, which requires holders to take certain actions such as filing proof of residence and paying certain charges.

The summary of terms of the depositary shares contained in this prospectus is not complete. You should refer to the forms of the depositary agreement, our restated certificate of incorporation and the certificate of designations for the applicable series of preferred stock that are, or will be, filed with the SEC.

#### **Dividends and Other Distributions**

The depositary will distribute all cash dividends or other cash distributions, if any, received in respect of the preferred stock underlying the depositary shares to the record holders of depositary shares in proportion to the numbers of depositary shares owned by those holders on the relevant record date. The relevant record date for depositary shares will be the same date as the record date for the preferred stock.

If there is a distribution other than in cash, the depositary will distribute property received by it to the record holders of depositary shares, unless the depositary determines that it is not feasible to make the distribution. If this occurs, the depositary may, with our approval, adopt another method for the distribution, including selling the property and distributing the net proceeds from the sale to the holders.

### Conversion and Exchange

Depositary shares will not themselves be convertible into class A common stock or any other securities or property of Watts Water. However, if the underlying preferred stock is convertible, holders of depositary shares may surrender them to the depositary with written instructions to convert the preferred stock represented by their depositary shares into whole shares of class A common stock, other shares of our preferred stock or other securities, as applicable. Upon receipt of these instructions and any amounts payable in connection with a conversion, we will convert the preferred stock using the same procedures as those provided for delivery of preferred stock. If a holder of depositary shares converts only part of its depositary shares, the depositary will issue a new depositary receipt for any depositary shares not converted. We will not issue fractional shares of class A common stock upon conversion. The terms and conditions for the treatment of fractional shares of class A common stock upon conversion will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement relating thereto.

#### **Liquidation Preference**

If a series of preferred stock underlying the depositary shares has a liquidation preference, in the event of the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Watts Water, holders of depositary shares will

22

#### **Table of Contents**

be entitled to receive the fraction of the liquidation preference accorded each share of the applicable series of preferred stock, as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.

#### Withdrawal of Stock

Unless the related depositary shares have been previously called for redemption, upon surrender of the depositary receipts at the office of the depositary, the holder of the depositary shares will be entitled to delivery, at the office of the depositary to or upon his or her order, of the number of whole shares of the preferred stock and any money or other property represented by the depositary shares. If the depositary receipts delivered by the holder evidence a number of depositary shares in excess of the number of depositary shares representing the number of whole shares of preferred stock to be withdrawn, the depositary will deliver to the holder at the same time a new depositary receipt evidencing the excess number of depositary shares. In no event will the depositary deliver fractional shares of preferred stock upon surrender of depositary receipts. Holders of preferred stock thus withdrawn may not thereafter deposit those shares under the depositary agreement or receive depositary receipts evidencing depositary shares therefor.

#### **Redemption of Depositary Shares**

Whenever we redeem shares of preferred stock held by the depositary, the depositary will redeem as of the same redemption date the number of depositary shares representing shares of the preferred stock so redeemed, so long as we have paid in full to the depositary the redemption price of the preferred stock to be redeemed plus an amount equal to any accumulated and unpaid dividends on the preferred stock to the date fixed for redemption. The redemption price per depositary share will be equal to the redemption price and any other amounts per share payable on the preferred stock multiplied by the fraction of a share of preferred stock represented by one depositary share. If less than all the depositary shares are to be redeemed, the depositary shares to be redeemed will be selected by lot or pro rata or by any other equitable method as may be determined by the depositary.

After the date fixed for redemption, depositary shares called for redemption will no longer be deemed to be outstanding and all rights of the holders of depositary shares will cease, except the right to receive the moneys payable upon redemption and any money or other property to which the holders of the depositary shares were entitled upon redemption upon surrender to the depositary of the depositary receipts evidencing the depositary shares.

### **Voting the Preferred Stock**

Upon receipt of notice of any meeting at which the holders of the preferred stock are entitled to vote, the depositary will mail the information contained in the notice of meeting to the record holders of the depositary receipts relating to that preferred stock. The record date for the depositary receipts relating to the preferred stock will be the same date as the record date for the preferred stock. Each record holder of the depositary shares on the record date will be entitled to instruct the depositary as to the exercise of the voting rights pertaining to the number of shares of preferred stock represented by that holder s depositary shares. The depositary will endeavor, insofar as practicable, to vote the number of shares of preferred stock represented by the depositary shares in accordance with those instructions, and we will agree to take all action that may be deemed necessary by the depositary in order to enable the depositary to do so. The depositary will not vote any shares of preferred stock except to the extent it receives specific instructions from the holders of depositary shares representing that number of shares of preferred stock.

## **Charges of Depositary**

We will pay all transfer and other taxes and governmental charges arising solely from the existence of the depositary arrangements. We will pay charges of the depositary in connection with the initial deposit of the preferred stock and any redemption of the preferred stock. Holders of depositary receipts will pay transfer, income and other taxes and governmental charges and such other charges as are expressly provided in the depositary agreement to be for their accounts. If these charges have not been paid by the holders of depositary receipts, the depositary may refuse to transfer depositary shares, withhold dividends and distributions and sell the depositary shares evidenced by the depositary receipt.

Table	of	Contents

### Amendment and Termination of the Depositary Agreement

The form of depositary receipt evidencing the depositary shares and any provision of the depositary agreement may be amended by agreement between us and the depositary. However, any amendment that materially and adversely alters the rights of the holders of depositary shares, other than fee changes, will not be effective unless the amendment has been approved by the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding depositary shares. The depositary agreement may be terminated by the depositary or us only if:

- all outstanding depositary shares have been redeemed; or
- there has been a final distribution of the preferred stock in connection with our dissolution and such distribution has been made to all the holders of depositary shares.

#### Resignation and Removal of Depositary

The depositary may resign at any time by delivering to us notice of its election to do so, and we may remove the depositary at any time. Any resignation or removal of the depositary will take effect upon our appointment of a successor depositary and its acceptance of such appointment. The successor depositary must be appointed within 60 days after delivery of the notice of resignation or removal and must be a bank or trust company having its principal office in the United States and having the requisite combined capital and surplus as set forth in the applicable agreement.

#### **Notices**

The depositary will forward to holders of depositary receipts all notices, reports and other communications, including proxy solicitation materials received from us, that are delivered to the depositary and that we are required to furnish to the holders of the preferred stock. In addition, the depositary will make available for inspection by holders of depositary receipts at the principal office of the depositary, and at such other places as it may from time to time deem advisable, any reports and communications we deliver to the depositary as the holder of preferred stock.

#### **Limitation of Liability**

Neither we nor the depositary will be liable if either of us is prevented or delayed by law or any circumstance beyond our control in performing our obligations. Our obligations and those of the depositary will be limited to performance in good faith of our and their duties thereunder. We and the depositary will not be obligated to prosecute or defend any legal proceeding in respect of any depositary shares or preferred stock unless satisfactory indemnity is furnished. We and the depositary may rely upon written advice of counsel or accountants, on information provided by

persons presenting preferred stock for deposit, holders of depositary receipts or other persons believed to be competent to give such information and on documents believed to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties.

<b>7D 1</b>	1			c.	$\sim$			
Tal	٦I	$\boldsymbol{e}$	$\cap$ 1	1		۱n	tei	ntc

#### DESCRIPTION OF CLASS A COMMON STOCK

#### General

The following is a description of the material terms and provisions of our common stock. It may not contain all the information that is important to you. You can access complete information by referring to our restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws.

Under our restated certificate of incorporation, we have authority to issue 80,000,000 shares of class A common stock, \$0.10 par value per share, and 25,000,000 shares of class B common stock, \$0.10 par value per share. As of March 20, 2015, 28,430,292 shares of class A common stock and 6,479,290 shares of class B common stock were issued and outstanding. All shares of common stock will, when issued, be duly authorized, fully paid and nonassessable. Thus, the full price for the outstanding shares of common stock will have been paid at issuance and any holder of our common stock will not be later required to pay us any additional money for such common stock.

#### Dividends

Subject to preferential rights of any other class or series of stock, the holders of shares of our class A common stock and our class B common stock are entitled to receive dividends, including dividends of our stock, as and when declared by our board of directors, subject to any limitations applicable by law and to the rights of the holders, if any, of our preferred stock. Whenever we pay any dividends, other than dividends of our stock, on our class A common stock, each share of class B common stock is entitled to receive a dividend at least equal to the dividend paid per share on our class A common stock and vice versa. In the event we are liquidated, dissolved or our affairs are wound up, after we pay or make adequate provision for all of our known debts and liabilities, each holder of class A common stock and class B common stock will receive dividends pro rata out of assets that we can legally use to pay distributions, subject to any rights that are granted to the holders of any class or series of preferred stock.

### **Voting Rights**

The holders of class A common stock have one vote per share and the holders of class B common stock have ten votes per share. Except as may be required by law and in connection with some significant actions, such as mergers, consolidations or amendments to our restated certificate of incorporation that affect the rights of stockholders, holders of our class A common stock and our class B common stock vote together as a single class. Each share of our class B common stock is convertible into one share of our class A common stock at any time at the holder s option. There is no cumulative voting in the election of our directors, which means that, subject to any rights to elect directors that are granted to the holders of any class or series of preferred stock, a plurality of the votes cast at a meeting of stockholders at which a quorum is present is sufficient to elect a director.

#### Other Rights

Subject to the preferential rights of any other class or series of stock, all shares of common stock have equal dividend, distribution, liquidation and other rights, and have no preference, appraisal or exchange rights, except for any appraisal rights provided by Delaware law. Furthermore, holders of common stock have no conversion, sinking fund or redemption rights, or preemptive rights to subscribe for any of our securities.

### Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent for our class A common stock is Wells Fargo Shareowner Services. The transfer agent for our class B common stock is Flowers and Manning, LLP.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### DESCRIPTION OF STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS AND STOCK PURCHASE UNITS

We may issue stock purchase contracts, including contracts obligating holders to purchase from or sell to us, and obligating us to sell to or purchase from the holders, a specified number of shares of our class A common stock, preferred stock or depositary shares at a future date or dates, which we refer to in this prospectus as stock purchase contracts. The price per share of class A common stock, preferred stock or depositary shares and the number of shares of each may be fixed at the time the stock purchase contracts are issued or may be determined by reference to a specific formula set forth in the stock purchase contracts. The stock purchase contracts may be issued separately or as part of units, often known as stock purchase units, consisting of one or more stock purchase contracts and beneficial interests in debt securities or any other securities described in the applicable prospectus supplement or any combination of the foregoing, securing the holders obligations to purchase the class A common stock, preferred stock or depositary shares under the stock purchase contracts.

The stock purchase contracts may require us to make periodic payments to the holders of the stock purchase units or vice versa, and these payments may be unsecured or prefunded on some basis. The stock purchase contracts may require holders to secure their obligations under those contracts in a specified manner, including without limitation by pledging their interest in another stock purchase contract.

The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the terms of the stock purchase contracts and stock purchase units, including, if applicable, collateral or depositary arrangements.

### DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS

We may issue warrants to purchase debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares or class A common stock. We may offer warrants separately or together with one or more additional warrants, debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares or class A common stock, or any combination of those securities in the form of units, as described in the applicable prospectus supplement. If we issue warrants as part of a unit, the accompanying prospectus supplement will specify whether those warrants may be separated from the other securities in the unit prior to the warrants expiration date. Below is a description of certain general terms and provisions of the warrants that we may offer. Further terms of the warrants will be described in the prospectus supplement.

The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the following terms of any warrants in respect of which this prospectus is being delivered:

- the specific designation and aggregate number of, and the price at which we will issue, the warrants;
- the currency or currency units in which the offering price, if any, and the exercise price are payable;

• continuously exe	the date on which the right to exercise the warrants will begin and the date on which that right will expire or, if you may not excise the warrants throughout that period, the specific date or dates on which you may exercise the warrants;
• the form of a wa	whether the warrants will be issued in definitive or global form or in any combination of these forms, although, in any case, rrant included in a unit will correspond to the form of the unit and of any security included in that unit;
•	any applicable material U.S. federal income tax consequences;
	26

# Table of Contents

eregistrars or other	the identity of the warrant agent for the warrants and of any other depositaries, execution or paying agents, transfer agents, agents;
• exchange;	the proposed listing, if any, of the warrants or any securities purchasable upon exercise of the warrants on any securities
•	the designation and terms of the equity securities purchasable upon exercise of the warrants;
• the warrants;	the designation, aggregate principal amount, currency and terms of the debt securities that may be purchased upon exercise of
• which the warran	if applicable, the designation and terms of the debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares or class A common stock with ts are issued and, the number of warrants issued with each security;
• class A common	if applicable, the date from and after which the warrants and the related debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares or stock will be separately transferable;
• purchasable upon	the number of shares of preferred stock, the number of depositary shares or the number of shares of class A common stock exercise of a warrant and the price at which those shares may be purchased;
•	if applicable, the minimum or maximum amount of the warrants that may be exercised at any one time;
•	information with respect to book-entry procedures, if any;
•	the antidilution provisions of the warrants, if any;
•	any redemption or call provisions;

whether the warrants are to be sold separately or with other securities as parts of units; and

27	• warrants.	any additional terms of the warrants, including terms, procedures and limitations relating to the exchange and exercise of the
21		27

#### **Table of Contents**

#### **DESCRIPTION OF UNITS**

We may issue units consisting of one or more of the other securities described in this prospectus in any combination. Each unit will be issued so that the holder of the unit is also the holder of each security included in the unit. Thus, the holder of a unit will have the rights and obligations of a holder of each included security. The unit agreement under which a unit is issued may provide that the securities included in the unit may not be held or transferred separately, at any time or at any time before a specified date. The applicable prospectus supplement may describe:

- the designation and terms of the units and of the securities comprising the units, including whether and under what circumstances those securities may be held or transferred separately;
- any provisions for the issuance, payment, settlement, transfer or exchange of the units or of the securities comprising the units;
- the terms of the unit agreement governing the units; and
- whether the units will be issued in fully registered global form.

This summary of certain general terms of units and any summary description of units in the applicable prospectus supplement do not purport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to all provisions of the applicable unit agreement and, if applicable, collateral arrangements and depositary arrangements relating to such units. The forms of the unit agreements and other documents relating to a particular issue of units will be filed with the SEC each time we issue units, and you should read those documents for provisions that may be important to you.

**Table of Contents** 

#### FORMS OF SECURITIES

Each debt security, depositary share, stock purchase contract, stock purchase unit, warrant and unit will be represented either by a certificate issued in definitive form to a particular investor or by one or more global securities representing the entire issuance of securities. Unless the applicable prospectus supplement provides otherwise, certificated securities in definitive form and global securities will be issued in registered form. Definitive securities name you or your nominee as the owner of the security, and in order to transfer or exchange these securities or to receive payments other than interest or other interim payments, you or your nominee must physically deliver the securities to the trustee, registrar, paying agent or other agent, as applicable. Global securities name a depositary or its nominee as the owner of the debt securities, depositary shares, stock purchase contracts, stock purchase units, warrants or units represented by these global securities. The depositary maintains a computerized system that will reflect each investor s beneficial ownership of the securities through an account maintained by the investor with its broker/dealer, bank, trust company or other representative, as we explain more fully below.

### **Registered Global Securities**

We may issue the registered debt securities, depositary shares, stock purchase contracts, stock purchase units, warrants and units in the form of one or more fully registered global securities that will be deposited with a depositary or its nominee identified in the applicable prospectus supplement and registered in the name of that depositary or nominee. In those cases, one or more registered global securities will be issued in a denomination or aggregate denominations equal to the portion of the aggregate principal or face amount of the securities to be represented by registered global securities. Unless and until it is exchanged in whole for securities in definitive registered form, a registered global security may not be transferred except as a whole by and among the depositary for the registered global security, the nominees of the depositary or any successors of the depositary or those nominees.

If not described below, any specific terms of the depositary arrangement with respect to any securities to be represented by a registered global security will be described in the prospectus supplement relating to those securities. We anticipate that the following provisions will apply to all depositary arrangements.

Ownership of beneficial interests in a registered global security will be limited to persons, called participants, that have accounts with the depositary or persons that may hold interests through participants. Upon the issuance of a registered global security, the depositary will credit, on its book-entry registration and transfer system, the participants accounts with the respective principal or face amounts of the securities beneficially owned by the participants. Any dealers, underwriters or agents participating in the distribution of the securities will designate the accounts to be credited. Ownership of beneficial interests in a registered global security will be shown on, and the transfer of ownership interests will be effected only through, records maintained by the depositary, with respect to interests of participants, and on the records of participants, with respect to interests of persons holding through participants. The laws of some states may require that some purchasers of securities take physical delivery of these securities in definitive form. These laws may impair your ability to own, transfer or pledge beneficial interests in registered global securities.

So long as the depositary, or its nominee, is the registered owner of a registered global security, that depositary or its nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of the securities represented by the registered global security for all purposes under the applicable indenture, depositary agreement, stock purchase contract, warrant agreement, stock purchase unit agreement or unit agreement. Except as described below, owners of beneficial interests in a registered global security will not be entitled to have the securities represented by the registered global security registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of the securities in definitive form and will not be considered the owners or holders of the securities under the applicable indenture, depositary agreement, stock purchase contract,

stock purchase unit agreement, warrant agreement or unit agreement. Accordingly, each person owning a beneficial interest in a registered global security must rely on the procedures of the depositary for that registered global security and, if that person is not a participant, on the procedures of the participant through which the person owns its interest, to exercise any rights of a holder under the applicable indenture, depositary agreement, stock purchase contract, stock purchase unit agreement, warrant agreement or unit agreement. We understand that under existing industry

#### **Table of Contents**

practices, if we request any action of holders or if an owner of a beneficial interest in a registered global security desires to give or take any action that a holder is entitled to give or take under the applicable indenture, depositary agreement, stock purchase contract, stock purchase unit agreement, warrant agreement or unit agreement, the depositary for the registered global security would authorize the participants holding the relevant beneficial interests to give or take that action, and the participants would authorize beneficial owners owning through them to give or take that action or would otherwise act upon the instructions of beneficial owners holding through them.

Principal, premium, if any, and interest payments on debt securities, and any payments to holders with respect to depositary shares, warrants, purchase agreements, stock purchase units or units, represented by a registered global security registered in the name of a depositary or its nominee will be made to the depositary or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered owner of the registered global security. None of Watts Water, the trustees, any warrant agent, unit agent or any other agent of Watts Water, agent of the trustee or agent of such warrant agent or unit agent will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests in the registered global security or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to those beneficial ownership interests.

We expect that the depositary for any of the securities represented by a registered global security, upon receipt of any payment to holders of principal, premium, interest or other distribution of underlying securities or other property on that registered global security, will immediately credit participants—accounts in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in that registered global security as shown on the records of the depositary. We also expect that payments by participants to owners of beneficial interests in a registered global security held through participants will be governed by standing customer instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with the securities held for the accounts of customers registered in—street name,—and will be the responsibility of those participants.

If the depositary for any of these securities represented by a registered global security is at any time unwilling or unable to continue as depositary or ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act, and a successor depositary registered as a clearing agency under the Exchange Act is not appointed by us within 90 days, we will issue securities in definitive form in exchange for the registered global security that had been held by the depositary. Any securities issued in definitive form in exchange for a registered global security will be registered in the name or names that the depositary gives to the relevant trustee, warrant agent, unit agent or other relevant agent of ours or theirs. It is expected that the depositary s instructions will be based on directions received by the depositary from participants with respect to ownership of beneficial interests in the registered global security that had been held by the depositary.

### SELLING SECURITY HOLDERS

The securities covered by this prospectus include securities that may be offered or sold by holders other than us. In such a case, we will provide you with a prospectus supplement disclosing the selling security holders, the nature of any relationship such holders have had with us or any of our affiliates during the three years preceding such offering, the amount of securities of the class owned by such holder before and after the offering, the amount of securities to be registered and sold and any other terms of the securities being sold by each selling security holder. A selling security holder may resell all, a portion or none of such holder securities at any time and from time to time in an offering covered by this prospectus and the accompanying prospectus supplement. Selling security holders may also sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of some or all of their securities in transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. We may pay all expenses incurred with respect to the registration of the securities owned by the selling security holders, other than underwriting fees, discounts or commissions, which will be borne by the selling security holders.

# Table of Contents

# PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We and any selli	ng security holders may sell securities:
we and any semi	ing security notices may sen securities.
•	through underwriters;
•	through dealers;
•	through agents;
•	directly to purchasers; or
•	through a combination of any of these methods of sale.
In addition, we n	nay issue the securities as a dividend or distribution or in a subscription rights offering to our existing security holders.
the prospectus su describe any con its appointment of customers of, en prospectus may l	g security holder may directly solicit offers to purchase securities, or agents may be designated to solicit such offers. We will, is applement relating to such offering, name any agent that could be viewed as an underwriter under the Securities Act and amissions that we or any selling security holder must pay. Any such agent will be acting on a best efforts basis for the period of or, if indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, on a firm commitment basis. Agents, dealers and underwriters may be gage in transactions with, or perform services for us or any selling security holder in the ordinary course of business. This be used in connection with any offering of our securities through any of these methods or other methods described in the ectus supplement.
The distribution	of the securities may be effected from time to time in one or more transactions:
•	at a fixed price, or prices, which may be changed from time to time;

•	at market prices prevailing at the time of sale;
•	at prices related to such prevailing market prices; or
•	at negotiated prices.
Each prospectus	supplement will describe the method of distribution of the securities and any applicable restrictions.
The prospectus s the following:	supplement with respect to the securities of a particular series will describe the terms of the offering of the securities, including
•	the name of the agent or any underwriters;
•	the public offering or purchase price;
•	any discounts and commissions to be allowed or paid to the agent or underwriters;
	31

## Table of Contents

• all o	other items constituting underwriting compensation;
• any	y discounts and commissions to be allowed or paid to dealers; and
• any	y exchanges on which the securities will be listed.
selling security holde	r agents are utilized in the sale of the securities in respect of which this prospectus is delivered, we and, if applicable, any er will enter into an underwriting agreement or other agreement with them at the time of sale to them, and we will set forth plement relating to such offering the names of the underwriters or agents and the material terms of the related agreement
	in the sale of the securities in respect of which the prospectus is delivered, we will sell such securities to the dealer, as may then resell such securities to the public at varying prices to be determined by such dealer at the time of resale.
dealers, acting as stan	in a subscription rights offering to our existing security holders, we may enter into a standby underwriting agreement with adby underwriters. We may pay the standby underwriters a commitment fee for the securities they commit to purchase on a do not enter into a standby underwriting arrangement, we may retain a dealer manager to manage a subscription rights
sales agency financin at-the-market sales pu act on an agency basis transactions or otherw related to the then pre be paid cannot be dete may agree to solicit o	make sales through one or more underwriters or agents in at-the-market offerings, we will do so pursuant to the terms of a gargement or other at-the-market offering arrangement between us and the underwriters or agents. If we engage in ursuant to any such agreement, we will issue and sell our securities through one or more underwriters or agents, which may is or on a principal basis. During the term of any such agreement, we may sell securities on a daily basis in exchange wise as we agree with the underwriters or agents. The agreement will provide that any securities sold will be sold at prices evailing market prices for our securities. Therefore, exact figures regarding proceeds that will be raised or commissions to termined at this time. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, we may agree to sell, and the relevant underwriters or agents offers to purchase, blocks of our class A common stock or other securities. The terms of each such agreement will be set in a prospectus supplement to this prospectus.
us and by any selling	igents, underwriters and dealers may be entitled under agreements which they may enter into with us to indemnification by security holder against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, and may be customers of, as with or perform services for us or any selling security holder in the ordinary course of business.
	applicable prospectus supplement, we will authorize underwriters or other persons acting as our agents to solicit offers by purchase securities from us pursuant to delayed delivery contracts providing for payment and delivery on the date stated in

the prospectus supplement. Each contract will be for an amount not less than, and the aggregate amount of securities sold pursuant to such

contracts shall not be less nor more than, the respective amounts stated in the prospectus supplement. Institutions with whom the contracts, when authorized, may be made include commercial and savings banks, insurance companies, pension funds, investment companies, educational and charitable institutions and other institutions, but shall in all cases be subject to our approval. Delayed delivery contracts will not be subject to any conditions except that:

- the purchase by an institution of the securities covered under that contract shall not at the time of delivery be prohibited under the laws of the jurisdiction to which that institution is subject; and
- if the securities are also being sold to underwriters acting as principals for their own account, the underwriters shall have purchased such securities not sold for delayed delivery. The underwriters and other persons acting as our agents will not have any responsibility in respect of the validity or performance of delayed delivery contracts.

### Table of Contents

Certain of the underwriters and their associates and affiliates may be customers of, have borrowing relationships with, engage in other transactions with, and/or perform services, including investment banking services, for, us and/or the selling security holders or one or more of our respective affiliates in the ordinary course of business.

In order to facilitate the offering of the securities, underwriters may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the securities or any other securities the prices of which may be used to determine payments on such securities. Specifically, underwriters may overallot in connection with the offering, creating a short position for their own accounts. In addition, to cover overallotments or to stabilize the price of the securities or of any such other securities, the underwriters may bid for, and purchase, the securities or any such other securities in the open market. Finally, in any offering of the securities through a syndicate of underwriters, the underwriting syndicate may reclaim selling concessions allowed to an underwriter or a dealer for distributing the securities in the offering if the syndicate repurchases previously distributed securities in transactions to cover syndicate short positions, in stabilization transactions or otherwise. Any of these activities may stabilize or maintain the market price of the securities above independent market levels. Underwriters are not required to engage in these activities and may end any of these activities at any time.

Each series of securities will be a new issue of securities and will have no established trading market other than the class A common stock which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Any underwriters to whom securities are sold for public offering and sale may make a market in the securities, but such underwriters will not be obligated to do so and may discontinue any market making at any time without notice. The securities, other than the class A common stock, may or may not be listed on a national securities exchange. We can make no assurance as to the liquidity of or the existence of trading markets for any of the securities.

Any selling security holders may also resell all or a portion of their securities in transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act in reliance upon Rule 144 under the Securities Act, provided they meet the criteria and conform to the requirements of that rule, Section 4(1) of the Securities Act or other applicable exemptions, regardless of whether the securities are covered by the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part.

### LEGAL MATTERS

Unless the applicable prospectus supplement indicates otherwise, the validity of the securities in respect of which this prospectus is being delivered will be passed upon by Hinckley, Allen & Snyder LLP, Boston, Massachusetts.

## **EXPERTS**

The consolidated financial statements and schedule of Watts Water Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2014, and the assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 have been incorporated by reference herein and in the registration statement in reliance upon the reports of KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, incorporated by reference herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The audit report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, contains an explanatory paragraph that states Watts Water Technologies, Inc. acquired AERCO during 2014, and management excluded from its assessment of the effectiveness of Watts Water Technologies, Inc. s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, AERCO s internal control over financial reporting associated with total assets of \$329 million and total revenues of \$5.3 million included in the consolidated financial statements of Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014. KPMG LLP s audit of internal control over financial reporting of Watts Water Technologies, Inc. also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of AERCO.

<b>m</b>	. 1		c	$\sim$			
Tα	hl	e	Ωt	Cc	n	tei	าts

Debt Securities
Preferred Stock
Depositary Shares
Class A Common Stock
Stock Purchase Contracts
Stock Purchase Units
Warrants
Units

**PROSPECTUS** 

March 31, 2015

#### **Table of Contents**

#### PART II.

### INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

#### Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.

Set forth below is an estimate (except in the case of the registration fee) of the amount of fees and expenses to be incurred in connection with the issuance and distribution of the offered securities, other than underwriting discounts and commissions.

SEC registration fee	\$ (1)
Printing and engraving	\$ (2)
Accounting services	\$ (2)
Legal fees of Registrant s counsel	\$ (2)
Listing fees	\$ (2)
Miscellaneous	\$ (2)
Total	\$ (2)

<sup>(1)</sup> Deferred in reliance upon Rules 456(b) and 457(r) under the Securities Act of 1933.

(2) These fees are calculated based on the securities offered and the number of issuances and accordingly cannot be estimated at this time.

### Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Section 145 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (DGCL) provides that a corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the corporation) by reason of the fact that the person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the corporation s request as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the person in connection with the action, suit or proceeding if the person acted in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe the person s conduct was unlawful. A corporation may also indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that the person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against expenses (including attorneys fees) actually and reasonably incurred by the person in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit if the person acted in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation and except that no indemnification may be made with respect to any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the corporation unless and only to the extent that the Court of Chancery or other adjudicating court determines that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all of the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the Court of Chancery or such other court shall deem proper.

In accordance with Section 102(b)(7) of the DGCL, Article X of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, of the Registrant provides that no director of the Registrant shall be personally liable to the Registrant or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for liability (i) for any breach of the director s duty of loyalty to the Registrant or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (iii) under Section 174 of the DGCL, or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.

II-1

#### **Table of Contents**

Article V of the Amended and Restated By-laws of the Registrant provides for indemnification by the Registrant of its directors, officers and certain non-officer employees under certain circumstances against expenses (including attorneys fees) judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred in connection with the defense or settlement of any threatened, pending or completed legal proceeding in which any such person is involved by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director, an officer or an employee of the Registrant, or is acting in any capacity with other entities at the request of the Registrant, if such person acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Registrant, and with respect to criminal actions or proceedings, that such person had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful.

Section 145(g) of the DGCL and Article V of the Amended and Restated By-laws of the Registrant provide that the Registrant shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of its officers, directors, employees and agents, against any liability asserted against and incurred by such persons in any such capacity. The Registrant has obtained insurance covering its directors and officers against losses and insuring the Registrant against certain of its obligations to indemnify its directors and officers. In addition, the Registrant has entered into an indemnification agreement with certain of its directors and officers. The indemnification agreement provides that the Registrant will indemnify these directors and officers for expenses incurred because of their status as a director or officer of the Registrant.

#### Item 16. Exhibits.

The exhibits to this Registration Statement are listed in the Exhibit Index, which appears elsewhere herein and is incorporated herein by reference.

### Item 17. Undertakings.

The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes:

- (1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
- (i) to include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act of 1933);
- (ii) to reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of this registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in this registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the Calculation of Registration Fee table in the effective registration statement; and

(iii) to include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in this registration statement or any material change to such information in this registration statement; *provided, however*, that paragraphs (1)(i), (1)(ii) and (1)(iii) do not apply if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by the Registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act ), that are incorporated by reference in this registration statement, or is contained in a form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is part of this registration statement.

(2) That, for the purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities

# Table of Contents

offered therein, and the offering of such securities at the time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
(4) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:
(a) each prospectus filed by the Registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and
(b) each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) as part of a registration statement in reliance on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii) or (x) for the purpose of providing the information required by Section 10(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the earlier of the date such form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering described in the prospectus. As provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the registration statement relating to the securities in the registration statement to which that prospectus relates, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date.
(5) That, for the purpose of determining liability of a Registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial distribution of the securities, the undersigned Registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of such undersigned Registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, such undersigned Registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:
(a) any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of such undersigned Registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424;
(b) any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of such undersigned Registrant or used or referred to by such undersigned Registrant;
(c) the portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about such undersigned Registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of such undersigned Registrant; and

(d) any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by such undersigned Registrant to the purchaser.

to Section 15(	That, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the Registrant s annual report action 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan s annual report pursuant d) of the Exchange Act) that is incorporated by reference in this registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration ting to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide of.

II-3

# Table of Contents

(7) That, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933:
(a) the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as part of the registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in the form of prospectus filed by the Registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of the registration statement as of the time it was declared effective; and
(b) each post-effective amendment that contains a form of prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
(8) To file an application for the purpose of determining the eligibility of the trustee to act under subsection (a) of Section 310 of the Trust Indenture Act in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Commission under Section 305(b)(2) of the Trust Indenture Act.
Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the Registrant pursuant to the indemnification provisions described herein, or otherwise, the Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by a Registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
II-4

### Table of Contents

#### **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the Town of North Andover, Commonwealth of Massachusetts, on March 31, 2015.

### WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ Robert J. Pagano, Jr.

Name: Robert J. Pagano, Jr.

Title: President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer

### SIGNATURES AND POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned officers and directors of Watts Water Technologies, Inc., hereby severally constitute and appoint Robert J. Pagano, Jr., Kenneth S. Korotkin and Kenneth R. Lepage, and each of them singly, our true and lawful attorneys with full power to any of them, and to each of them singly, to sign for us and in our names in the capacities indicated below the Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed herewith and any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to said Registration Statement and generally to do all such things in our name and behalf in our capacities as officers and directors to enable Watts Water Technologies, Inc. to comply with the provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and all requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming our signatures as they may be signed by our said attorneys, or any of them, to said Registration Statement and any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) thereto.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this Registration Statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature	Title	Date
/s/ Robert J. Pagano, Jr. Robert J. Pagano, Jr.	President, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and a Director ( <i>Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer</i> )	March 31, 2015
/s/ Kenneth S. Korotkin Kenneth S. Korotkin	Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)	March 31, 2015
/s/ Robert L. Ayers Robert L. Ayers	Director	March 31, 2015
/s/ Bernard Baert Bernard Baert	Director	March 31, 2015

# Table of Contents

/s/ Kennett F. Burnes Kennett F. Burnes	Director	March 31, 2015
/s/ Richard J. Cathcart Richard J. Cathcart	Director	March 31, 2015
/s/ W. Craig Kissel W. Craig Kissel	Director	March 31, 2015
/s/ John K. McGillicuddy John K. McGillicuddy	Director	March 31, 2015
/s/ Joseph T. Noonan Joseph T. Noonan	Director	March 31, 2015
/s/ Merilee Raines Merilee Raines	Director	March 31, 2015
	II-6	

## Table of Contents

### **EXHIBIT INDEX**

Exhibit No.	Description
1*	Form of Underwriting Agreement
2+	Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 6, 2014, by and among AHC Holding Company, Inc., Riverside Capital Appreciation Fund V-A, L.P., 2003 Riverside Capital Appreciation Fund (QC), L.P., Riverside Capital Appreciation Fund V, L.P., RCAF 2003 CIV XII, L.P., and 2003 Riverside Capital Appreciation Fund, L.P., as sellers representative, the stockholders of AHC Holding Company, Inc., the option holders of AHC Holding Company, Inc., Watts Water
	Technologies, Inc., and Watts Regulator Co. (incorporated by reference to the Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 6, 2014 (File No. 001-11499))
3.1	Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated by reference to the Registrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 3, 2005 (File No. 001-11499))
3.2	Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporated by reference to the Registrant s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 29, 2013 (File No. 001-11499))
3.3*	Form of Certificate of Designations Containing Preferred Stock Terms
4.1	Form of Senior Indenture
4.2	Form of Subordinated Indenture
4.3	Form of Senior Note
4.4	Form of Subordinated Note
4.5*	Form of Depositary Agreement (including form of depositary receipt)
4.6*	Form of Warrant Agreement (including form of warrant)
4.7*	Form of Stock Purchase Contract Agreement (including form of related security certificate)
4.8*	Form of Stock Purchase Unit Agreement
4.9*	Form of Unit Agreement (including form of unit certificate)
5	Opinion of Hinckley, Allen & Snyder LLP
12	Calculation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges
23.1	Consent of Hinckley, Allen & Snyder LLP (included in Exhibit 5)
23.2	Consent of KPMG LLP
24	Powers of Attorney (included in the signature pages to the Registration Statement)
25.1*	Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of the Trustee under the Senior Indenture
25.2*	Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, of the Trustee under the Subordinated Indenture

<sup>\*</sup> To be filed by amendment to the Registration Statement or by a Current Report on Form 8-K, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or Annual Report on Form 10-K prior to the issuance of the applicable securities.

<sup>+</sup> The Registrant hereby agrees to furnish a supplemental copy of any omitted schedule or similar attachment to this agreement to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon its request.